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Federal M ne Safety and Health Review Commi ssion (FF.MS. HRC.)
O fice of Adm nistrative Law Judges

SECRETARY OF LABOR, Cl VI L PENALTY PROCEEDI NG
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADM NI STRATI ON ( MSHA) , Docket No. CENT 88-106-M
PETI TI ONER A.C. No. 41-02775-05503
V. Dudl ey's Pit M ne

LEBLANC S CONCRETE & MORTAR
SAND COMPANY,
RESPONDENT

DECI SI ON

Appear ances: Brian L. Pudenz, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor
U.S. Departnent of Labor, Dallas, Texas, for
the Petitioner;

Dudl ey J. LeBlanc, Owner, LeBlanc's Concrete &
Mortar Sand Conpany, Rosenberg, Texas, Pro Se,
for the Respondent.

Bef ore: Judge Koutras
Statement of the Case

This is a civil penalty proceeding initiated by the
petitioner against the respondent pursuant to section 110(a) of
the Federal M ne Safety and Health Act of 1977, 30 U S.C. O
820(a), seeking civil penalty assessnents for 10 all eged
vi ol ations of certain mandatory safety standards found in Part
56, Title 30, Code of Federal Regul ations. The respondent filed a
timely answer and notice of contest, and a hearing was held in
Houst on, Texas. The parties waived the filing of posthearing
briefs, but | have considered all of their oral argunments made on
the record during the hearing in ny adjudication of this matter

| ssues

The issues presented in this case are (1) whether the
conditions or practices cited by the inspector constitute
violations of the cited mandatory safety standards, (2) the
appropriate civil penalties to be assessed for the violations,
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taking into account the statutory civil penalty criteria found in
section 110(i) of the Act, and (3) whether several of the
viol ations were in fact "significant and substantial.”

1
95- 164,

2.

3.

Applicable Statutory and Regul atory Provisions

The Federal M ne Safety and Health Act of 1977; Pub. L.
30 U.S.C. O 801 et seq.

Part 56, Title 30, Code of Federal Regul ations.

Conmi ssion Rules, 29 C.F.R 0O 2700.1 et seq.

Sti pul ati ons

The parties stipulated in pertinent part to the follow ng
(Exhibit ALJ-1):

1. The nane of the respondent conpany is LeBlanc's
Concrete & Mortar Sand Conpany with a place of business
near Rosenberg, Texas.

2. Jurisdiction is conferred upon the Federal M ne
Safety and Health Revi ew Commi ssi on under the Federa

M ne Safety and Health Act, 30 U.S.C. 0O 801 et seq. The
al l eged violations took place in or involve a mne that
has products which affect comrerce.

3. The nane of the mine is Dudley's Pit, identification
nunmber 41-02775. The mine is | ocated near Ri chnond,
Texas in Fort Bend County. The size of the conpany and
mne is 7,480 production tons or hours worked per year

4. The inposition of any penalty in this case will not
affect the respondent's ability to continue in
busi ness.

5. The total nunber of assessed violations (including
single penalties tinely paid) in the preceding
twenty-four nonths is zero.

6. On March 1, 1988, an inspection was conducted by
James S. Smiser and Joseph P. Watson (al so known as Jim
Wat son) aut hori zed
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representatives of the Mne Safety and Health
Admi ni stration.

7. Ten Section 104(a) citations (nunbers 03061705
t hrough 03061714) were issued for violations of 30
C.F.R [ 56.14006, 56.14001, 56.15020, 56.14001
56. 4102, 56.4230(a)(1l), 56.46001, 56.14001, and
56.4100(b) respectively, on March 1, 1988.

8. Al of the citations were abated within twenty-four
(24) hours by the respondent.

Di scussi on

When the hearing convened, the parties advised ne that the
respondent wished to withdraw its contests with respect to
Citation Nos. 3061705 and 3061708 (photographic exhibits P-4 and
P-1). The respondent agreed to pay the full amunt of the
proposed civil penalty assessments for the violations, and after
considering the request to withdraw the contests as a proposed
settl enent pursuant to Conmission Rule 30, 29 C F.R 0O 2700. 30,
the request was granted and the settlenent was approved fromthe
bench. My decision in this regard is herein reaffirmed, and the
citations are affirmed as issued.

The remaining citations in issue in this proceeding are as
foll ows:

Section 104(a) "S&S" Citation No. 3061706, cites a violation
of 30 C.F.R [ 56.14001, and the condition or practice states as
foll ows:

The guard covering main drive shaft and couplers on
dredge was broken, parts renoved, and | oose, exposing
enpl oyee to nmoving nmachine parts, a fall into dredge
sunmp, and a potential of being drown (sic) in water/oi
being held in bottom of dredge.

Section 104(a) "S&S" Citation No. 3061707, cites a violation
of 30 C.F.R [ 56.15020, and the condition or practice states as
fol |l ows:

The dredge operator did not wear a |ife jacket on
dredge while on deck and where there is a danger from
falling into water, the dredge deck is not protected by
handrail s.
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Sect i

on 104(a) "S&S" Citation No. 3061709, cites a viola-

tion of 30 C.F. R 0 56.4102, and the condition or practice

states as

Secti
of 30 C F.
states as

Secti
of 30 C F.
states as

Sect i
viol ation

foll ows:

The flammabl e or conmbustible Iiquid spillage and

| eakage was not renmoved in a tinmely manner or
controlled to prevent a fire hazard on the dredge. The
sunp of dredge contained a |arge amount of oil, diese
fuel, and water floating under engine, punp, and other
equi pnment which could be ignited to produce a flash
fire and expose operator to fire hazard.

on 104(a) "S&S" Citation No. 3061710, cites a violation
R. [ 56.4230(a)(1), and the cited condition or practice
fol |l ows:

A fire extinguisher was not provided on the dredge
where a fire or its effects could i npede escape from
sel f-propel | ed equi pnent. Operator is exposed to fire
hazard from diesel fuel, oils, and grease used on

dr edge notor.

on 104(a) "S&S" Citation No. 3061711, cites a violation
R. 0O 56.4600(a) (1), and the cited condition or practice
fol |l ows:

A fire extinguisher was not provided in the welding
area of shop where electric arc and cutting torch were
in use. Electrical circuits are also in area which
coul d produce a hazard by the use of a electrica
conductive extinguishing agent. A multi-purpose dry
chemi cal fire extinguisher or other type with at | east
a 2-A; 10 B:Crating shall be used. Conbustibles are
stored in area of shop which could be ignited by
wel di ng activity.

on 104(a) non-"S&S" Citation No. 3061713, cites a
of 30 CF.R [ 56.14001, and the cited condition or

practice states as follows:

The V-belt drive of floating fresh water punp was not
provided with a guard to protect ingoing pinch points.
Gravity reduced due to |location of punp.
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Section 104(a) non-"S&S" Citation No. 3061712, cites a violation
of 30 C.F.R [ 56.14001, and the cited condition or practice
states as follows:

The V-belt drive on shop air conpressor was not
provided with a guard to protect enployees fromingoing
pi nch points. Gravity is reduced due to | ocation of
drive.

Section 104(a) "S&S" Citation No. 3061714, cites a violation
of 30 C.F.R [ 56.4100(b), and the cited condition or practice
states as fol |l ows:

Wel di ng, which produces open flame and sparks, was in
area of shop which also had bulk oils stored with open
caps and hand punps. Enpl oyee was exposed to fire
hazard. Gravity is increased due to lack of a fire
exti ngui sher being avail able at area.

Petitioner's Testinony and Evi dence

MSHA | nspector Janmes R Smiser, testified as to his
experience and training, and he confirnmed that he conducted an
i nspection at the respondent's mning operation on March 1, 1988,
and issued the citations which are in issue in this proceeding.

Citation No. 3061706

I nspector Sniser stated that he issued this citation after
observing that the mesh grating guard used to guard the main
drive shaft and coupler on the dredge was | oose and unsecured. |f
one were to step on the grating, it would give and go down under
the wei ght of anyone walking on it. M. Snmiser identified exhibit
P-2 as a photograph of the mesh guard in question.

M. Sm ser confirnmed that he made a gravity finding of
"highly likely," and he did so because the dredge deck was wet
and coated with oil, making it slippery, and he believed that if
anyone stepped on the grating it would give way and expose the
i ndividual to the hazard of falling into the exposed noving drive
shaft and coupl er.

M. Sm ser confirned that he made a negligence finding of
"noder at e" because the dredge operator was required to be on the
dredge, and he shoul d have been aware of the readily observabl e
condition of the |oose grating.
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On cross-exam nation, M. Smser confirmed that when he stepped
on the | oose grating guard, it gave some, but did not touch the
coupler. He also confirned that he had no know edge that the
grating had been in that condition for 2 years, and that his
i nspection was the first time he had observed the condition. He
stated that he discussed the condition with superintendent Jim
Davis, and agreed that the | oose grating was probably caused by
fatigue resulting froma broken angle iron which hel ped support
the grating.

Citation No. 3061707

I nspector Smiser confirmed that he issued the citation after
observing that the dredge operator was not wearing a |life jacket
while the dredge was in operation. He stated that the dredge
operat or wal ked around the dredge while inspecting the equipnment,
and at the time of the inspection the dredge deck was wet and
slippery due to the presence of water and oil, and the dredge
perimeter was not equipped with handrails. Under these
ci rcumst ances, he concluded that the violation was "significant
and substantial"™ because it was reasonable |likely that the dredge
operator could drown if he slipped and fell off the barge w thout
alife jacket.

M. Sm ser confirned that he made a negligence finding of
"noder at e" because the respondent had been in the dredging
busi ness for years and shoul d have been aware of the requirenment
for the wearing of a life jacket.

M. Smiser stated that he spoke with superintendent Jim
Davis who advised himthat life jackets are made avail able to the
dredge operator and that the operator apparently chose not to
take one with himor to wear it at the tine of the inspection.

On cross-exam nation, M. Smiser stated that he did not know
t he di nensions of the dredge and nade no neasurenents. He
descri bed the pilot house where the dredge operator is stationed
when he operates the dredge, and estimated that it was 5 feet
wi de. He confirned that he observed no life jacket on the dredge,
and that M. Davis obtai ned one after the inspection and provided
it to the dredge operator. M. Smiser identified photographic
exhi bitp-3(a) as the dredge in question, and he estimated that it
was anchored approxi mately 100 to 150 yards off shore, but he did
not know the depth of the water at that |ocation. He al so
i dentified photographic exhibit P-3(b) as a photograph of a
portion of the edge of the dredge deck where no handrails were
i nstall ed.
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M. Smiser stated that if the water was "knee deep," he would

still require the dredge operator to wear a life jacket because
if he slipped or fell overboard and struck his head, he would
still be exposed to a drowning hazard if he was not wearing a
life jacket.

M. Sm ser stated that in accordance with MSHA's policy, if
the dredge were equi pped with protective hand-rails, a life
j acket would not be required. He confirmed that there is no
mandat ory standard requiring hand-rails on a dredge, and that in
the absence of hand-rails, there is a presunption that a dredge
operator without a life jacket woul d be exposed to the hazard of
falling overboard at any given tinme while wal ki ng around the
dredge perform ng his duties.

M. Sm ser confirned that he spoke with the dredge operator
and asked hi mwhy he was not wearing a |life jacket, but received
no response or explanation.

Citation No. 3061709

M. Sm ser stated that he issued the citation after
observing an accunul ati on of conbustible and flammable oil and
di esel fuel below the dredge engi ne and sunp punp. The liquid had
spilled or |eaked fromthe engine or sunp and it was mxed with
wat er and was floating on the surface beneath the engine. He
identified the nmaterial as the "shiny" material shown behind the
batteri es and bel ow the engi ne in photographic exhibit P-5.

M. Smiser confirmed that he made a gravity finding of
"reasonably likely," and considered the violation as significant
and substantial because the conbustible materials could have been
ignited and caused a "flash fire" fromthe heat of the engine.

Al t hough the operator's conpartnent was |ocated 15 to 20 feet
fromthe sunp and engine area, the absence of a |life jacket and a
fire extinguisher on the dredge, and the fact that diesel fue

was stored on the dredge, added to the hazard in that in the
event of a fire, the dredge operator would be unable to safely
renove hinself fromthe dredge and could suffer fatal injuries.

M. Sm ser confirned that he made a negligence finding of
"noder at e" because the | eakage or spillage was readily observabl e
and the respondent should have been aware of the requirenment to
timely renmove the accunul ated nmaterial s.
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On cross-exam nation, M. Smiser stated that he did not neasure
t he accurul ations, but estimated they were 6 to 8 inches deep. He
confirmed that he had no knowl edge of the "flash point" of the
accunul ated oil or fuel, and did not know how nuch heat was
generated by the engine, or how hot it had to be in order to
ignite the materials or cause a flash fire. He assuned that oi
and fuel, by their-nature, are conbustible and flammabl e.

M. Sm ser stated that the sunp is |ocated approximtely 12
to 15 inches bel ow the deck | evel of the dredge, and he had no
know edge of the size and type of the dredge engine.

Citation No. 3061710

M. Smiser confirmed that he issued the citation after
finding that no fire extingui sher was provided for the dredge
whi ch was the subject of the previous citations. Gven the
potential fire hazard presented by the accumrul ati on of
combustible fuel and oil at the dredge engi ne and sunp area, as
described with respect to Citation No. 3061709, and the fue
stored on board, he believed that it was reasonable likely that a
fire would occur, and if it did, the absence of a fire
extingui sher woul d not provide a nmeans for extinguishing the
fire, and the lack of a life jacket for use by the dredge
operator woul d have i npeded his escape fromthe hazard. M.

Smi ser confirmed that he considered the dredge to be

sel f-propell ed equi prent for which a fire extinguisher was
requi red. Under these circunmstances, he concluded that the
vi ol ati on was significant and substanti al

M. Sm ser confirmed that he made a negligence finding of
"noderate" and that he did so because superintendent Davis
advised himthat a fire extinguisher had previously been provided
for the dredge, and that one was obtained and provided by M.
Davis after the inspection. Under these circunmstances, M. Sm ser
concl uded that the respondent was aware of the requirenment for a
fire extinguisher and that it knew or should have known about the
requirenment.

On cross-exam nation, M. Smiser confirmed that he and M.
Davis were transported to the dredge by a small boat, but he had
no know edge as to whether another boat or barge used to
transport fuel and the dredge operator to the dredge was al so
tied up and available for the dredge operator at the tinme of the
i nspection. M. Sniser stated further that the pilot house
contai ning the dredge controls had one door
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Citation No. 3061711

M. Sm ser confirnmed that he issued the citation after he
found that a nultipurpose dry chemical fire extinguisher was not
provi ded at the shop area where electrical welding work was being
performed on a dredgi ng bucket. He stated that fluids and oils
were being used and stored in the shop, and he observed three or
four 55-gallon druns of oil stored in one corner of the shop, and
one of the drums was equi pped with a hand punp. He estinated that
these drunms were | ocated approximately 8 to 10 feet from where
the wel ding or cutting was taken place.

M. Sm ser confirmed that he made a gravity finding of
"nmoder ate" and considered the violation to be significant and
substanti al because it was reasonably likely that an "air arc"
generated by the type of work going on could spray small pieces
of hot netal in the shop and ignite the oil and other fluids
whi ch were present in the shop. However, he believed that in the
event of a fire, the workers in the shop area could quickly exit
t he shop.

M. Sm ser confirmed that he made a negligence finding of
"nmoder at e" because he believed that the respondent knew or should
have known about the requirenment for a fire extinguisher in the
shop.

On cross-exam nation, M. Smser stated that he had no
know edge of the size of the shop, but estimated that it was
approximately 100 x 200 feet, and he characterized it as
"pretty good size," with an open entrance.

M. Sm ser confirned that the welding truck was parked
i nside the shop, and the actual welding work was taking place
outside the shop entrance i medi ately bel ow the shop roof-1line
and approximately 4 to 5 feet outside of the shop

M. Sm ser stated that he could not recall the precise
cutting or welding process which was taking place, but believed
that it was an "air-arc" cutting apparatus which used conpressed
air. He did not believe that an open flanme process which utilizes
acetyl ene gas or oxygen, or electric welding, was being used, but
confirmed that both of these processes were available for use. He
confirmed that the bucket in question was on the ground.

M. Smiser confirmed that the cited standard, section
56.4600(a) (1), requires that a multipurpose dry chenical fire
extingui sher be avail abl e when electrical arc or open flane
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wel ding or cutting work is being perforned, and that the intent
of the standard is to insure that an appropriate fire

extingui sher be available in the event the kind of welding taking
pl ace creates an electrical hazard.

Citation No. 3061712

M. Smiser confirmed that he issued the citation after
finding that the V-belt drive on a conpressor |ocated in the shop
was not guarded. He stated that enpl oyees had access to the area
where the conpressor was |ocated, and that tools and other
materials were |ocated and stored in the area. M. Sm ser
descri bed the conpressor as a "large tank" located in the corner
of the shop, and he stated that the unguarded belt was mounted on
top of the conpressor approximtely 5 to 5-1/2 feet above the
shop floor, and that it was to the rear of the conpressor facing
the outside shop wall

M. Smiser stated that he nade a gravity finding of
"unlikely" and did not consider the violation to be significant
and substantial because he believed it was unlikely that an
injury would occur due to the | ocation of the unguarded belt. He
did not believe it was |likely that an enpl oyee woul d get caught
in the unguarded belt and suffer an injury. He confirned that the
respondent's negligence was | ow because it was probably not aware
that the belt was required to be guarded.

On cross-exam nation, M. Smiser stated that if someone
deliberately wanted to get into the unguarded belt, they could do
so by reaching behind the compressor. He al so believed that
soneone could contact the unguarded belt through inattention, but
conceded that there was a "slimchance" of anyone contacting the
bel t.

M. Smiser stated that he did not believe that the cited
belt in question was guarded "by location," and that MSHA' s
i nformal policy recognizes "guarding by violation"” only in
i nstances where unguarded pinch points are located 7 feet off the
ground.

Citation No. 3061713

I nspector Sm ser confirnmed that he issued the citation after
finding that the V-belt drive on the fresh water floating punp
not or was not provided with a guard to protect the exposed pinch
points. He identified photographic exhibit P-9 as a photograph of
the punp in question. He confirmed that he nmade a gravity finding
of "unlikely" and did not consider the violation to be
signi ficant and substantial because it was
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unlikely that an enployee would be at the punp |ocation when it
was started up or in operation. Due to the |ocation of the punp,
and the fact that the notor was activated fromthe plant, he did
not believe that it was likely that an enpl oyee woul d be exposed
to a hazard.

On cross-exam nation, M. Smiser stated that the cited
mandat ory standard, section 56.14001, requires that a belt drive
"whi ch may be contacted" be guarded. He confirmed that M. Davis
advi sed himthat under nornal operating circunstances, no one
woul d be on the punp barge.

Citation No. 3061714

M. Smiser confirmed that he issued the citation because the
wel di ng taking place in the shop area as previously descri bed
with respect to Citation No. 3061711 was taking place at the shop
area where flammbl e or conmbustible oils and fluids were stored
or handled. M. Smiser confirmed that while both citations were
i ssued for the same welding or cutting work which was being
performed on the bucket outside the shop, Citation No. 3061714,
was issued for performng welding work in an area where open
flame wel ding was taking place in an area where conbusti bl e or
flammabl e oils and fluids were stored. Perform ng such work in
such an area is prohibited by the standard.

M. Sm ser stated that the coil welding which was taking
pl ace produces open flane sparks, and he determ ned that an
injury was reasonably likely in that in the event of a fire
someone woul d probably suffer mnor burns. For these reasons, he
determ ned that the violation was significant and substanti al

M. Sm ser confirned that he made a finding of "I ow
negl i gence, and that he did so because M. Davis advised himthat
he was in the process of noving the stored materials to another
| ocati on.

Respondent's Testi nony and Evi dence

Dudl ey J. LeBlanc, respondent's owner, testified that his
concrete and sand dredgi ng operation is a very small business,
and that he enpl oys four individuals at his operation. One person
operates the dredge, one operates the plant, one operates the
| oaders which load the trucks, and one person works in the
office. He further stated that he is open for business 5 days a
week, from7:00 a.m to 5:00 p.m
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Citation No. 3061706

M. LeBl anc conceded that the netal grating provided to
guard the dredge drive shaft and couplers was | oose and in need
of repair because of a broken angle iron support. However, he
poi nted out that nost of the drive shaft was | ocated under the
grating which was firmy in place as shown by phot ographic
exhibit P-2. He also stated that the machi ne gear box which is
shown in the photograph is nornmally in that raised position.

Al t hough the guarding was | oose, M. LeBlanc stated that one
could walk on it and it would not give or contact the drive shaft
or coupler.

Citation No. 3061707

M. LeBl anc stated that he has instructed the dredge
operator to wear a life jacket while working on the dredge, and
that he is provided with a jacket. Although he was not present
during the inspection, M. LeBlanc believed that a |life jacket
was provided and |located in the pilot house |ocated at the end of
t he dredge. After view ng photographic exhibit P-3(a), M.

LeBl anc estimated that the dredge was |located 10 to 15 feet from
the bank, and was in 4 or 5 feet deep water on the day of the

i nspecti on. However, he confirned that during any given day, the
dredge noves from one | ocation to another during the dredgi ng and
punpi ng operation, and that it does operate in water which is 30
feet deep.

M. LeBl anc stated that the dredge was 16 feet wi de and 24
feet long, with two 4 x 20 foot floats. The dredge contains a
pil ot house, an 8 x 10 foot punp, four wi nches, and a Detroit
engi ne and hydraulic punp. Diesel fuel is used to drive the
dredge, and there is a 900 gallon fuel tank at the rear of the
dr edge.

Citation No. 3061709

M. LeBl anc stated that the engi ne and sunp | eakage in
guestion was not unusual in that the packing around the sunp
drive shaft causes | eakage. He confirmed that the spillage and
| eakage cannot be enptied into the water, and that it is
periodically renoved and taken ashore. He has now devi sed a
met hod to automatically punp out the spillage and renove it from
t he dredge.

M. LeBlanc stated that while diesel fuel is conbustible,
its ignition point is so high that one could throw a |ighted
match on the materials and it will not ignite. He confirmed that
the dredge operator is pernmtted to snmoke while in the
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pil ot house, and that a water can is available in the house for
cigarette butts. The operator is not permitted to snoke while
wor ki ng on the dredge outside of the pilot house.

Citation No. 3061710

M. LeBl anc confirmed that since he was not on the dredge
during the inspection, he did not know whether a fire
extingui sher was aboard. He stated that an 8 x 20 foot smal
barge used for transporting fuel is always tied up at the dredge,
and it can be used by the dredge operator in an energency. He
stated that the pilot house has two doors, and it contains the
dredge controls and radi o and comruni cati ons equi pnent.

Citation No. 3061711

M. LeBl anc confirmed that he was not present during the
i nspection and has no know edge as to whether a fire extinguisher
was provided for the shop area. However, he did observe a C. O
five extinguisher in the shop in the evening after the
i nspection. He confirnmed that the welding operation was taking
pl ace outside of the shop and that the bucket which was being
servi ced was on the ground. Since it was on the ground, he did
not believe that any sparks or arcs would reach the oil stored
i nside the shop. In the event wel ding was taking place above the
stored oil drums, he would concede that arcs and sparks could
fall below and onto the oil drums, but since this was not the
case, he did not believe that any hazard was present.

Citation No. 3061712

M. LeBlanc stated that the cited unguarded conpressor belt
was at approxi mate "eye-level" and that the conpressor was
nmounted on 4 x 4 blocks in the corner of the shop. He stated
that in order to change out the belt |ocated at the rear of the
conpressor, one would have to physically nove the conpressor in
order to gain access to the belt. He stated that he abated the
citation by installing a bar across the conpressor to provide a
physical barrier, and that the V-belt itself was not required to
be guarded.

Citation No. 3061713

M. LeBl anc stated that under normal operating procedures,
no one is required to be on the barge on which the fresh water
punp was | ocated. The punp notor is activated from shore in the
pl ant by neans of a switch | ocated 200 to 300 feet fromthe
barge, and that any engine primng is done fromthe shore sone
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20 to 30 feet away. He stated that the punp is located on a 6 X
6 foot barge which rests on floats, and that no one is permitted
to be on the barge while the punp is in operation. He confirnmed
that someone is on the barge only once a week for service before
dredging is started, but that all of the electricity is
deenergi zed and the punp is shut down. \Wen nmmjor repairs are
required, the punp is physically lifted ashore by neans of a
cherry picker.

Citation No. 3061714

M. LeBl anc confirmed that the welding work in question was
taki ng place outside of the shop at the same |ocation and on the
sane piece of equipnment where Citation No. 3061711 was issued. He
conceded that the work was being performed with an acetyl ene
oxygen cutting torch which produced an open flane, and although
he had available a "plasma cutter that you cut with electricity,"”
it was inoperative.

Fi ndi ngs and Concl usi ons
Fact of Violations
Citation No. 3061706, 30 C.F. R 0O 56.14001

The inspector issued the citation after finding that the
wire mesh grating guard used to guard the dredge drive shaft and
coupl er was | oose and unsecured. The inspector confirned that the
respondent's superintendent agreed that the grating was | oose
because of fatigue resulting froma broken angle iron used to
support the guard, and M. LeBlanc conceded that this was the
case and that the guard was in need of repair. Although M.

LeBl anc believed that nmost of the drive shaft was protected and
di sagreed with the inspector's belief that the grating would give
and nove down if someone were to walk on it, the fact remains
that the guard was not securely in place, and | believe one can
reasonably conclude that through fatigue and wear, it would have
come conpletely | oose over time and exposed one to a hazard of
falling into the noving drive shaft and coupler. | conclude and
find that a violation has been established, and the citation IS
AFF| RVED.

Citation No. 3061707, 30 C.F.R [ 56.15020

The evidence establishes that the dredge operator was not
wearing a life jacket while the dredge was in operation and while
he was wal ki ng around a slippery deck perform ng his duties. The
dredge was not provided with any protective handrails around its
perinmeter, and in the event the operator
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fell into the water, which | believe was reasonably likely given
the slippery deck conditions, he could possibly drown. Although
M. LeBl anc stated that the dredge was located in 4 or 5 feet of
wat er, he confirmed that on any given day the dredge noves around
and sometinmes operates in water 30 feet deep. Although the
respondent's evidence indicates that a life jacket may have been
provi ded for the dredge operator's use, the fact remains that he
was not wearing it. Under the circunstances, | conclude and find
that a violation has been established, and the citation IS

AFFI RMVED

Citation No. 3061709, 30 C.F.R [ 56.4102

The inspector issued the citation after observing a
conbi nation of oil, diesel fuel, and water floating under the
dredge sunp punp and engine | ocated approximately 12 to 15 i nches
bel ow the deck | evel of the dredge. The inspector did not neasure
the accunul ated naterials, but estinmated they were 6 to 8 inches
deep. The cited section 56.4102, provides that "flanmable or
combustible liquid spillage shall be renoved in a tinmely manner
or controlled to prevent a fire hazard."

30 CF.R [056.2 defines the term "conbustible” as "capable
of being ignited and consuned by fire." The term"flammble" is
defined as "capable of being easily ignited and of burning
rapidly."” The term"Flash Point" is defined as "the mi nimum
tenperature at which sufficient vapor is released by a liquid or
solid to forma flammbl e vapor-air mxture at atnospheric
pressure."”

M. LeBlanc testified that due to the packing around the
shell of the water punp, it is inpossible to prevent water from
| eaking and mixing with oil and hydraulic fluid which nmay be
present when the hoses break. He confirmed that any such spillage
is periodically cleaned up and contained within the dredge, and
then taken to shore and di sposed of. Although he conceded t hat
the material may be considered conmbustible, he stated that the
ignition point is so high that it would not burn even if one were
to throw a lighted match on it. M. LeBlanc's testinony in this
regard i s unrebutted.

The evidence here establishes that the accunul ated nmaterials
were a mxture of water, which one nmay reasonably assune was
| eaking fromthe water punp, and oil and diesel fuel. Section
56. 4102, requires the renoval or control of "flammable or
combustible spillage. In my view, in order to establish a
violation, a determ nation nust be made by the inspector as to
whet her the accumul ati ons he observed were in fact conmbustible or
flammabl e. G ven the m xture of water
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whi ch was present, and M. LeBlanc's unrebutted testinmony wth
respect to the absence of an ignition point high enough to ignite
the materials in question, | cannot conclude that the petitioner
has presented any credi bl e probative evidence to establish the
conbustibility or flammability of the materials cited by the

i nspector. Although the inspector was of the opinion that a
"flash fire" could have resulted fromthe heat generated by the
engi ne, he conceded that he had no know edge as to the flash
poi nt of the accunulated oil and fuel, how rmuch heat was
generated by the engine, or whether the engine was hot enough to
generate a flash fire. Under the circunstances, | conclude and
find that the petitioner has failed to establish that the
accunmul ated materials were in fact conmbustible or flanmable.
Accordingly, | conclude and find that a violation has not been
est abl i shed, and the citation IS VACATED

Citation No. 3061710, 30 C.F.R 0 56.4230(a)(1)

The inspector issued the citation after finding that a fire
exti ngui sher was not provided for the self-propelled dredge. The
cited section 56.4230(a)(1), provides that "whenever a fire or
its effects could inpede escape from sel f-propelled equi pnent, a
fire extinguisher shall be on the equipnent.”

The inspector believed that an accunul ati on of fuel and oi
at the sunp punp area presented a potential fire hazard, and that
in the event of a fire, and in the absence of a fire
ext i ngui sher, there would be no available nmeans to fight the
fire. The accunul ations noted by the inspector were the sane
accurul ati ons previously cited in Citation No. 3061709. That
citation was vacated for a lack of any credi ble evidence to
establish that the accunul ati ons were conmbusti bl e or flammble.

I find no problemwith a safety standard which directly and
clearly requires that a fire extinguisher be available on a
dredge in the event of a fire. However, | do have a problemwith
the | anguage of the particular standard cited in this instance.
The standard requires a fire extinguisher only if it can be shown
that "a fire or its effects” could i npede an escape from
sel f-propell ed equi pnent. | find no evidence in this case to
establish that any fire or its effects could have inpeded the
escape of the dredge operator fromthe dredge. Although the
absence of a life jacket may have effectively inpeded his escape,
the respondent here has al ready been charged with a violation for
the failure of the dredge operator to wear a life jacket. The
intent of the standard is fire protection, and it is not alife
j acket requirement.
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On the facts of this case, the dredge was | ocated 10 to 15 feet
fromshore in water 4 to 5 feet deep, and M. LeBlanc's
unrebutted credible testinony reflects that a small barge is
al ways tied up to the dredge for use in any enmergency. In the
event of any fire, the dredge operator could readily junmp
overboard, or use the barge as a nmeans of |eaving the dredge.
Under all of these circumstances, including the | ack of any
evi dence to establish that a fire, or its effects, would have
i npeded the escape of the dredge operator, | conclude and find a
vi ol ati on has not been established. Accordingly, the citation IS
VACATED.

Citation No. 3061711, 30 C.F.R 0O 56.4600(a) (1)

In this instance, the respondent is charged with an all eged
vi ol ati on of mandatory standard 30 C.F.R. 0O 56.4600(a) (1), which
provi des as foll ows:

Exti ngui shing Equi pment .

(a) When wel ding, cutting, soldering, thaw ng, or
bendi ng- -

(1) Wth an electric arc or with an open flane where an
el ectrically conductive extingui shing agent could
create an electrical hazard, a multipurpose
dry-cheni cal extinguisher or other extinguisher with at
least a 2-A:10-B:Crating shall be at the worksite

The inspector confirmed that he issued the citation because
a nmulti-purpose dry chemical fire extinguisher was not provided
at the location where welding work was being perfornmed on a
dr edgi ng bucket outside of the shop. The citation states that an
electric arc and cutting torch were in use during the welding
process, that electrical circuits were present, and that these
circuits could produce a hazard by the use of an electrically
conductive extingui shing agent.

The inspector testified that electrical welding work was
bei ng performed on the bucket in question, and that he was
concerned that an "air arc" generated by the type of welding work
taki ng place could have sprayed small pieces of hot nmetal into
the shop and ignited sonme oil and other fluids which were stored
in drunms inside the shop. In short, the testinony of the
i nspector reflects that he was concerned about a fire hazard,
rather than an electrical hazard. Although the citation alluded
to the presence of certain electrical circuits,
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the inspector's testinmony is devoid of any reference to any such
electrical circuits or electrical hazards.

In ny view, the intent of the standard is to preclude the
use of an extingui shing agent or apparatus capabl e of conducting
electricity, thereby introducing an electrical hazard if the
proper type of extinguisher is not avail able when work is being
performed with an electric arc or open flane. As an exanple, the
i nspector stated that if a water fire extingui sher were being
used, it could create an electrical hazard (Tr. 60).

The inspector testified that electrical welding was taking
pl ace, and that the work included the use of an "air arc process”
which is a cutting nmethod that uses conpressed air to renove
nolten nmetal. He confirned that he could not recall whether an
el ectric or gas process was being used, nor could he recal
whet her an el ectrical welding device or a torch open flanme device
usi ng oxygen acetyl ene or propane was being used. In any event,
he confirmed that the term™"air arc" could apply to either a
torch wel ding systemor an electric system and that the
respondent was using one or the other, and no other type of
system (Tr. 59).

M. LeBl anc confirnmed that he was not present during the
i nspection and he had no knowl edge as to whether or not any fire
extingui sher was provided at the |ocation where the wel ding work
in question was being performed. He conceded that the work was
bei ng performed with an acetylene cutting torch which produced an
open fl ane.

On the facts presented here, although the inspector could
not recall which of the two welding systens were being used
(electric arc or open flame), M. LeBlanc confirmed that it was
the latter. The inspector's credible testinmony establishes that
no fire extinguishing agent or device was available at the
| ocati on where the work was being perforned. Although one may
argue that in the absence of any fire extinguisher, an
el ectrically conductive extingui shing agent was not present to
create an electrical hazard, my construction of the intent of the
standard | eads nme to conclude and find that a multipurpose
dry-chem cal extinguisher was required to be available at the
work location in question. Since it was not, | further concl ude
and find that a violation has been established, and the citation
| S AFFI RMVED.

Citation No. 3061712, 30 C. F.R 0O 56.14001

The evidence establishes that the conpressor drive unit was
not guarded to prevent contact with an exposed noving
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machi ne part. Although the evidence establishes that the
unguarded unit was facing the wall, and that it had to be noved
in order for one to gain access to it, | cannot conclude that it
was "guarded by location.” The inspector stated that the
unguarded drive was approximately 5 to 5-1/2 feet above ground

I evel, and M. LeBlanc confirmed that it was at "eye level." The
i nspector also testified that the conpressor was |located in a
shop area where tools and other materials were | ocated and
stored, and that enpl oyees had ready access to the area. Although
the inspector agreed that it was unlikely that anyone woul d get
caught in the unguarded drive unit and suffer an injury, the
intent of the guarding standard is to preclude the possibility of
anyone contacting an exposed and unguarded pi nch-point through

i nattention, inadvertence, or ordinary human carel essness. See:
Secretary of Labor v. Thonpson Brothers Coal Conpany, Inc., 6
FMSHRC 2094 (Septenber 1984). | conclude and find that a

vi ol ati on has been established, and the citation |IS AFFI RMED

Citation No. 3061713, 30 C.F.R [ 56.14001

The inspector issued the citation after finding that a belt
drive unit on a floating fresh water punp was not guarded over
its "ingoing pinch points." The punp was installed on a 6 x 6
foot barge which is supported by floats, and it was |ocated on
the water 20 x 30 feet off shore (photographic exhibit P-9).
The inspector believed that it would be unlikely that anyone
woul d be on the barge when the punp was started fromthe plant,
and due to the location of the punmp, he did not believe that it
was |ikely that anyone woul d be exposed to a hazard. M.

LeBl anc's unrebutted credible testinmony reflects that the punp
motor is activated by neans of a switch |ocated in the plant

whi ch was | ocated sone 200 to 300 feet fromthe barge, and that
any primng of the punp is done fromshore. M. LeBlanc confirned
that no one is required to be on the barge during the nornal
operation of the punp, and that although soneone nay be on the
barge once a week for service before any dredging is begun, the
punp i s deenergized and shut down, and if any major repairs to
the punp are required, the punp is lifted out of the water with a
cherry picker and taken ashore for repairs.

I find no evidence to support any reasonabl e concl usi on that
there existed a reasonabl e possibility of anyone contacting the
unguarded punp belt drive unit in question, and the petitioner
has presented no evidence to establish that anyone woul d ever be
near the belt drive while the punp was in operation. Under the
ci rcumst ances, | conclude and find that a
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viol ati on has not been established, and the citation IS VACATED

Citation No. 3061714, 30 C.F.R [ 56.4100(b)

The inspector issued the citation because of the presence of
oils and fluids in the shop area where wel di ng was taking pl ace.
Section 56.4100(b), prohibits the use of an open flanme where
fl ammabl e conbustible Iiquids, including greases, are stored or
handl ed. The inspector testified that he observed several 55
gallon drums of oil, one of which had a hand punp for dispensing
the oil, and three or four drums of petroleumfuel. The inspector
confirmed that the superintendent advised himthat a new storage
area was being prepared to store the drunms of oil and fluids in
questi on.

The evidence establishes that the oil and fluid druns in
guestion were stored inside the shop area in one corner, and that
the wel ding work in progress was taking place outside of the
shop. The inspector had no know edge as to the types of fluids or
oils which were in the druns, and he presented no credible
testinony or evidence to establish that the oils and fluids were
in fact combustible or flammable. He confirmed that section
56. 4100 does not establish any particul ar di stance paraneters
requiring the separation of stored flanmabl e and conbusti bl e
materials fromopen flames, and assuned that the use of an open
flame in the same buil ding where such materials are stored woul d
be prohibited, unless there was an appropriate di stance between
the two or a partition isolating the naterials from an open
flame. He conceded that in this case, he sinmply concl uded that
the materials and open flame wel ding were in "close enough
proximty" to present a hazard (Tr. 79-80).

In this case, the evidence establishes that the oil and fue
druns were stored inside the shop approximately 8 to 10 feet away
fromwhere the welding was taking place (Tr. 52). The shop was
approximately 100 x 200 feet, with an opening in the front of
approximately 50 to 75 feet. The dredge bucket which was being
wor ked on was | ocated outside of the shop on the ground some 4 to
5 feet beyond the roofline of the shop (Tr. 56). Thus, the druns
in question were stored inside the shop approximtely 12 to 15
feet fromwhere the dredge bucket was | ocated outside of the
shop. Under these circunmstances, | conclude and find that there
was an adequate physical separation between the outside shop area
where the work was being done and the area inside the shop where
the drums which were not proven to contain conbustible or
flammabl e materials were stored, and that the work | ocation was
not, by any reasonable interpretation, a |ocation where flammble
or conbustible
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liquids were stored. Accordingly, I further conclude and find
that a violation has not been established, and the citation IS
VACATED

Significant and Substantial Violations

A "significant and substantial" violation is described in
section 104(d)(1) of the Mne Act as a violation "of such nature
as could significantly and substantially contribute to the cause
and effect of a coal or other nmine safety or health hazard." 30
C.F.R 0O814(d)(1). Aviolation is properly designated

signi ficant and substantial "if, based upon the particular facts
surroundi ng the violation there exists a reasonable |ikelihood
that the hazard contributed to will result in an injury or

illness of a reasonably serious nature." Cenent Division
Nat i onal Gypsum Co., 3 FMSHRC 822, 825 (April 1981).

In Mathies Coal Co., 6 FMSHRC 1, 3-4 (January 1984), the
Commi ssion explained its interpretation of the term "significant
and substantial" as follows:

In order to establish that a violation of a mandatory
saf ety standard is significant and substantial under
Nati onal Gypsum the Secretary of Labor nust prove: (1)
the underlying violation of a mandatory safety
standard; (2) a discrete safety hazard--that is, a
measure of danger to safety-contributed to by the
violation; (3) a reasonable likelihood that the hazard
contributed to will result in an injury; and (4) a
reasonabl e Iikelihood that the injury in question wl|l
be of a reasonably serious nature.

In United States Steel M ning Conmpany, Inc., 7 FMSHRC 1125,
1129, the Commi ssion stated further as foll ows:

We have explained further that the third elenment of the
Mathies formula "requires that the Secretary establish
a reasonabl e |likelihood that the hazard contributed to
wWill result in an event in which there is an injury.”
US Steel Mning Co., 6 FMSHRC 1834, 1836 (August
1984). We have enphasi zed that, in accordance with the
| anguage of section 104(d)(1), it is the contribution
of a violation to the cause and effect of a hazard that
nmust be significant and substantial. U S. Steel M ning
Conpany,
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Inc., 6 FMSHRC 1866, 1868 (August 1984); U.S. Steel M ning

Conpany, Inc., 6 FMSHRC 1573, 1574-75 (July 1984).

The question of whether any particular violation is
signi ficant and substantial nust be based on the particular facts
surroundi ng the violation, including the nature of the mne
i nvol ved, Secretary of Labor v. Texasgulf, Inc., 10 FMSHRC 498
(April 1988); Youghi ogheny & Ohi o Coal Conpany, 9 FMSHRC 2007
(Decenber 1987).

Citation No. 3061706

I conclude and find that the | oose and broken wi re mesh
guard over the engine drive shaft and couplers constituted a
signi ficant and substantial violation. The | ocation of the engine
was such that it was readily avail able to anyone stepping across
fromone side of the dredge to the other, and given the fact that
the angle iron guard support had broken through fatigue,
bel i eve that over time, as nore strain was placed on the nesh
guardi ng by anyone stepping or walking on it, it would be
reasonably likely that the guarding woul d have given way. If this
had occurred while sonmeone was stepping over it or walking on it,
he could have fallen into the noving drive shaft and couplers and
suffered injuries of a reasonably serious nature. Under the
circunstances, the inspector's "S&S" finding IS AFFlI RVED

I take note of the fact that although the citation issued by
I nspector Sni ser makes reference to a potential drowning if
someone were to fall into the water and oil held in the bottom of
t he dredge, no testinmony was forthconming fromthe inspector with
regard to this alleged hazardous condition, and my findi ngs and
conclusions are limted to the question of possible contact with
novi ng machi ne parts because of the | oose and unsecured w re nesh
guardi ng in question.

Citation No. 3061707

I conclude and find that the failure of the dredge operator
to wear a life jacket while performng his work duties on the
slippery deck of the dredge which was not protected by handrails
constituted a significant and substantial violation. Gven the
fact that the dredge operator works alone in water which is
sonetinmes as nmuch as 30 feet deep, if he were to slip and fal
off the dredge without a life jacket, and possibly strike his
head on the metal deck, | believe that one could conclude that he
woul d l'ikely drown. The inspector's "S&S" finding |I'S AFFI RVED
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Wth regard to Citation No. 3061711, concerning the lack of a
fire extinguisher in the shop area where wel di ng was taking place
with an electrical arc and cutting torch, the evidence
establishes that the wel ding work was not being perfornmed inside
the shop where the 55-gallon druns of oil were stored in one
corner. The work was bei ng done outside the shop sone 12 to 15
feet fromwhere the drums were | ocated. |nspector Sm ser conceded
that it was possible that the respondent was performing the
wel di ng outside of the shop as a precautionary nmeasure to insure
sonme di stance between the wel ding work area and the area where
the drums were stored. The inspector also confirmed that in the
event of a fire, the enployees in the shop area would have no
difficulty in exiting the shop. M. LeBlanc confirned that the
wel di ng work was taking place at ground |evel, and he did not
bel i eve that any sparks generated by the welding activity could
reach the druns which were stored in the corner of the shop

Based on the facts presented here, | cannot conclude that
the violation was significant and substantial. G ven the fact
that the wel ding was taking place at ground | evel outside the
shop, and sone distance fromthe stored oil drums, | find it
unli kely that any sparks generated by the welding activity would
reach the druns and ignite the oil and cause a fire. Further, |
find no evidence that the lack of a fire extinguisher presented
any electrical hazard. Under the circunstances, the inspector's
"S&S" finding |'S REJECTED, and the citation is nodified to a
non-"S&S" citation.

Si ze of Business and Effect of Civil Penalty Assessnents on the
Respondent's Ability to Continue in Business

Based on the stipulations by the parties and M. LeBlanc's
unrebutted testinony concerning the size and scope of his
operation, | conclude and find the respondent is a very snall
nm ne operator

The parties have stipulated that paynment of any civi
penalty assessnments in this case will not adversely affect the
respondent’'s ability to continue in business. | adopt this
stipulation as ny finding and conclusion on this issue.

Hi story of Prior Violations

M. LeBl anc stated that he has operated his present business
since 1984. Although the petitioner's proposed stipul ations,
Exhi bit ALJ-1, and the information which appears on MSHA' s
proposed assessnent Form 100-179, reflects that the
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respondent had no prior assessed violations for the 24-nonth
period prior to the issuance of the citations in issue in this
case, M. LeBlanc believed that he had three prior citations.
However, he could provide no further information, and the
petitioner could not el aborate further

Since the burden of establishing any prior violations lies
with the petitioner, and since the petitioner did not present any
conmput er print-out or other evidence with regard to any prior
assessed violations, | conclude and find that for purposes of the
civil penalty assessnents made by me for the violations which
have been affirned, the respondent has no history of prior
assessed viol ati ons.

Good Faith Conpliance

M. LeBlanc testified that his operation has never
experienced an accident or injury, and that he has a concern for
the safety of his enployees and has al ways taken pronpt
corrective action to abate any violative conditions brought to
his attention. He confirnmed that he al ways wel cones any MSHA
i nspection in order to maintain a safe working environnent for
his enpl oyees, and that all of the citations in this case were
pronptly abated within 24 hours.

I nspector Smi ser agreed with M. LeBlanc's testinony, and
the parties have stipulated that all of the citations were abated
in good faith by the respondent within 24 hours. Accordingly, |
conclude and find that the respondent exhibited rapid good faith
conpliance in correcting the cited conditions, and this is
reflected in the civil penalties which I have assessed for the
vi ol ati ons which have been affirned.

Negl i gence

For the reasons stated by the inspector, | agree with his
noder at e negligence findings with respect to Citation Nos.
3061706, 3061707, and 3061711, and these findings are al
affirmed. | also agree with his | ow negligence findings with
respect to Citation No. 3061712, and his finding in this regard
is affirmed.

Gravity

In view of my "S&S" findings with respect to Citation Nos.
3061706 and 3061707, | conclude and find that these violations
were serious. | further conclude and find that the violation
cited in Citation No. 3061711, was non-seri ous.
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Civil Penalty Assessnents

On the basis of the foregoing findings and concl usi ons, and
taking into account the requirements of section 110(i) of the
Act, | conclude and find that the following civil penalty
assessnments are reasonabl e and appropriate for the violations
whi ch have been affirned in this proceeding:

Citation No. Dat e 30 C.F.R Section Assessment
3061705 03/ 01/ 88 56. 14006 $ 30
3061706 03/01/8 856. 14001 $ 70
3061707 03/ 01/ 88 56. 15020 $ 65
3061708 03/ 01/ 88 56. 14001 $ 20
3061711 03/ 01/ 88 56. 4606(a) (1) $ 20
3061712 03/ 01/ 88 56. 14001 $ 20

ORDER

The respondent IS ORDERED to pay the civil penalties
assessed in this proceeding within thirty (30) days of this
deci sion and order. Upon recei pt of payment by the petitioner
this case is dism ssed.

Citation Nos. 3061709, 3061710, 3061713, and 3061714 ARE
VACATED, and the proposed civil penalty assessnents ARE deni ed
and di sni ssed.

George A. Koutras
Adm ni strative Law Judge



